EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA
January 18", 2024 at 9:00 a.m.

Carson Valley Swim Center
1600 Hwy 88, Minden, Nevada

Pursuant to Chapter 241 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, the East Fork Swimming Pool District hereby notifies
all interested parties that the Board of Trustees will conduct business of the district as noted below.

stttk s o ok otk sk sk Rk Rk ok s sk R sk R sk ok sk SRR s R sk Rk sk st sk otk ok sk sk ok R Rk R ok Rk kR sk o ok
9:00am Call to Order and Recognition of Quorum
PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action Can be Taken)

At this time, public comment will be taken on those items that are within the jurisdiction and control of the
Board of Trustees. Public Comment is limited to 3 minutes per speaker.

If you are going to comment on a specific agenda item scheduled for action, please do so when that item is opened
for public comment. Please identify yourself and sign in on the sign-up sheet. Do not offer comment until
acknowledged by the Chair.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

The Board of Trustees reserves the right to take items in a different order to accomplish business in the most
efficient manner; to combine two or more agenda items for consideration, and; to remove items from the agenda
or delay discussion relating to items on the agenda.

CONSENT AGENDA

Items appearing on the Consent Agenda are items that can be adopted with one motion and vote unless an item 1s
pulled for discussion by a Trustee or a member of the public. Members of the public who wish to have a consent
item placed on the Administrative Agenda shall make that request during public comment at the beginning of the
meeting and state why they are making that request. When items are pulled from the Consent Agenda, they will
automatically be placed at the beginning of the Administrative Agenda or, may be continued until the next
meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENT
Motion to Approve Consent Calendar items la & 1b
la. For Possible Action. Approval of previous minutes from the December 19, 2023 Meeting.

1b. For Possible Action. Approval of general ledger cash balances, expenditures and investments through
December 31%, 2023.



ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA

The Administrative Agenda will proceed as follows:
* The Chairman will read the agenda title into the public record.
« Staff and/or Trustees will provide relevant information on the matter.
+  The Board will discuss the item. Once that discussion is concluded, the Chair will take public comment at three
minutes per speaker.
»  Once public comment is completed, the Board may again discuss or proceed directly to vote.

**For agenda items that are listed as “Discussion Only” with no action, public comment is not legally required. Public
comment may be accepted by the Chair at their discretion.

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS PULLED FOR FURTHER DISCUSSION:
Any item pulled for discussion from the Consent Agenda will be heard at this time unless continued to a later meeting.

Administrative Agenda

2 For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action to elect the Chair and Vice Chair for the Board of
Trustees.
25 For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action on selecting a qualified elector to serve the remainder

of the term for Charles Douglas Robbins. The appointed Trustee will take office on Thursday, February
29" 2024, and will serve until December 31%, 2024.

o Discussion Only. Discussion and update on the Capital Improvement Plan ongoing and possible future
projects.
5 For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action on the proposal for the EFSPD Parking Lot extension

project from RO Anderson in the amount of $134,500.

6. Discussion Only. Discussion of the proposed *24-’25 operating budget, 5-year capital improvement
budget and population trends of Douglas County.

7 Discussion Only. Report from the Swim Center Director:
= User Attendance
= Staffing and Programming
» Marketing and Public Relations Information
=  Employee Recognition
* Maintenance Updates
= Monthly Financial Update
= Correspondence

8. For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action on proposed agenda items for the February 29th,
2024 general meeting and 2024 Board meeting dates.

Adjournment

Copies of the agenda were posted at 4:30pm, Thursday, January 11", 2024 at the following locations:
1. Carson Valley Swim Center, 1600 Highway 88, Minden, NV.

2. Douglas Co. Administration Building (Historic Courthouse) 1616 Eighth St., Minden, NV.

3. Douglas County Administration Office (Minden Inn) 1594 Esmeralda St., Minden, NV

4. Carson Valley Swim Center Web Site: www.cvswim.com
5. State of NV web site: https://notice.nv.gov/

Posted By: Signed:
Reasonable efforts will be made to accommodate disabled individuals desiring to attend the meeting. If you are interested
in materials call Sharon Thompson at 775-392-4063 24 hours in advance so that arrangements may be made.




EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
AGENDA ACTION SHEET
Agenda Item # la
Title: Approval of the General Meeting minutes from December 19", 2023
Background: These are the draft minutes from your previous meeting.
Funding: NA
Recommended Motion: Move to approve the General Meeting minutes from December 19%, 2023
Trustee Action: Approved
Denied
No Action

Other




EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
GENERAL MEETING MINUTES
December 19, 2023 at 9:00 a.m.

Carson Valley Swim Center
1600 Hwy 88, Minden, Nevada

The Board of Trustees December 19", 2023 general meeting was called to order by Chairperson Sharon
DeslJardins at 9:00 AM at the Carson Valley Swim Center, Minden, NV. Board members present were,
Vice Chairman Travis Lee, Doug Robbins, Frank Dressel and Trustee Teresa Duffy.

No Public Comment:

AGENDA
Upon motion by Robbins to approve agenda, seconded by Dressel, the motion was unanimously approved.

No Public Comment
ok 3k ok ok 3k ok 3%k ok %k 3k 3k 3k ok ok ok 3k 3k 3k 3k ok ok 3k ok sk ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok 3k ok sk ok 3k ok ok sk ok ok ok ok ok ok sk ok sk ok ok sk ok sk ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok sk sk sk sk ok ok ok sk ok sk ok ok ok ok ok ok skook %k

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

la. For possible action. Approval of previous minutes from the November 14", 2023 General
Meeting

1b. For possible action. Approval of general ledger cash balances, expenditures, and investments
through November 30", 2023

Upon motion made by Duffy and seconded by Lee. The consent agenda items la & 1b were
unanimously approved.

No Public Comment

ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA

2.

Discussion Only. Discussion and update on the Capital Improvement Plan ongoing and possible
future projects.

Chairwoman DesJardins introduced the item. Harris states you’ll see in section 2 of our board binder
that we have a starting balance as of November 30" of $3,038,503 and if things go an ending balance pf
$1,591,079. As we have discussed, we have postponed the Eastside Expansion till the next fiscal. That
line item will be transferred to the next fiscal year, and to remind the board, we start the new budget
process in our next board meeting. I have received the Splash Park agreement; it is signed by us as well
as Douglas County. The Roof Restoration they put coating on roof. There were some places that needed
to be redone. We are still holding retention money and wont release that till 100% satisfied. May not be
done till Spring time. McCullough states that the Eastside Expansion has been deferred to next
September 2024 and is about a 9-month project. So will probably finish by Spring 2025.

No Public Comment

Discussion Only. Discussion and update of the districts “Strategic Plan.”

Chairperson DeslJardins introduced item. Lee thanks Harris for updating pages 5-11, it talks about some
of the accomplishments we have made. Harris says last two pages in section 3 there are
accomplishments, updates. I will add the Eastside Expansion and the Splash Park partnership. We are
hoping to bring Rob Anderson in to talk about the property next door. Maybe adding some additional
parking over there and looking at the future for that land.



Public Comment: Mr. Biaggi states that it was states that inflation is at an all-time high. Inflation is
not sat an all time high. Mortgages were much higher yeas ago than they are now. Harris states that her
9-year perspective was based on increases in chemicals and supplies here at the swimming center.

Discussion Only. Discussion and update on the procedures when filling a Board of Trustee
position after a resignation and a farewell to Douglas Robbins.

Chairperson DesJardins introduced item. Thompson, Board Clerk states we were not required to do a
public notice so we placed an ad in the Record Courier that will run on December 16" and December
20", We will close the process on December 21% and any interested parties will need to submit a Letter
of Interest by that date. At that point I will look at letters to make sure the candidates live within our
district. I will invite the qualified candidates to the January 18™ meeting where the trustees will have an
opportunity to ask each candidate some questions. It will be an action item on the January 18" board
meeting. At that point the chairperson will ask for a motion to select a candidate. Duffy states should
we do background checks. Harris states that she will check into that. We background check our staff
because they have contact with children. The Board doesn’t have that contact. Harris wants to
acknowledge Robbins. Thank you for your 7- and one-half years of service to our district. Robbins
states that is all honesty, it has been fun.

Public Comment: Mr. Biaggi states is submitting a Letter of Interest for the Board Trustee position.

Discussion Only. Report from the Swim Center Director.
CVSC December 2023 Director’s Report
User Attendance: See board binder documents.

* Nov 2022 Attendance was 6962. Nov 2023 Attendance was 7373 (See attached docs)

Programming, Staffing and Training:

» Underwater Santa pictures were successful and pictures were emailed out.

e Aquatic Supervisors and Shannon are registered for the AOAP Conference Feb 2024.

e Leadership Team (Director and Supervisors) meet monthly to plan and discuss CVSC programming &
staffing.

* Monthly In-Service Training/Meeting was conducted by all supervisors.

® Session, Drop-In and Private swim and dive lessons are combined numbers and classes have been
successful (see attached #’s)

e Water Aerobics Class attendance is staying steady at 35+ participants in the morning classes. Evening
classes are smaller but well likes and attended.

Marketing and Public Relations:

e Sarah and Shannon met with the Eureka County Pool Manager and gave a tour and shared Docs.

e Shannon attended the Board of Commissioners meeting — Interlocal Agreement approval with County
(splash park)

¢ Shannon attended (online) the Executive and General NRPS Board Meetings.

e Social media exposure, information sharing and flyers: Facebook & Instagram updates (Sarah &
Catherine).

e Website updates (Justin, Paul, Sharon), Google Business updates (Shannon), Alignable updates
(Shannon)

e Publications: Carson Valley Business Directory, Getaway Reno/Tahoe Area, Best of CV, Almanac,
Record Courier.

¢ CGI Marketing Group continues to do a good job managing our online reputation with Google, Yelp
(Shannon)

e Phone Message updates (Sherrie)
* Water Aerobics Coordinator (Deanna) is emailing staff and patrons on our internal water aerobics list to
keep up-to-date on schedule or procedure changes.



Employee Recognition:

«Employee of the Month: November 2023 Abbigail Detsch, Lifeguard. Abby is truly an asset to the CVSC
team. She is professional, kind, engaging and thoughtful. She is liked by her peers, management and
patrons. She oftentimes has the opening shift which can be one of the most demanding shifts having to
arrive at Sam and then she would go to school afterwards. She is consistent and covers for others.

Maintenance Updates:
 Roof coating project walk thru identified more work to be done. Retention is still being held.
¢ Rockwall is up and running. Positive feedback.
¢ Dive stand pad has been put in place but has some bubbling. The company will replace the pad.
(warranty)
* Daily, weekly, monthly and annual maintenance projects and asset management are being completed...
excel document updated by Maintenance Supervisor and Director regularly

e Updating and improving the data information in Reserve Analyst (Asset Management Program).
Monthly Financial: See board binder documents.

Correspondence: See board binder documents (if applicable).

No Public Comment

6. For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action on proposed agenda items for the Tuesday
January 18", 2024 meeting
CIP Update
Rob Anderson
Approval of Chairperson and Vice Chairperson
Trustee Selection
Discuss meeting calendar

Upon motion made by Robbins and seconded by Lee to adjourn meeting. Motion to adjourn meeting was
unanimously approved.



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Agenda Item # 1b

Title:

Background:

Funding:

Recommended Motion:

Trustee Action:

AGENDA ACTION SHEET

For possible action. Approval of general ledger cash balances,
expenditures and investments through December 31, 2023.

NRS requires local government entities governing boards to
approve expenditures for their entity and to report cash balances as
well as investments. It is important for Trustees to be aware of the
financial status of the District.

NA

Move to approve the report of general ledger cash balances,
expenditures and investments through December 31%, 2023.

Approved
Denied
No Action
Other



9:57 AM EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
01/04/24 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2023
Dec 31, 23
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
101 - WELLS FARGO CHECKING ACCT. 289,234.16
108 - CASH ON HAND 850.00
112-4 - LOCAL GOV'T INVESTMENT POOL 3,051,444.25
112-5 - LOCAL GOV'T POOL OPERATING 192,777.39
Total Checking/Savings 3,534,305.80
Accounts Receivable
121 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 3,108.00
Total Accounts Receivable 3,108.00
Other Current Assets
12100 - INVENTORY
115 - CHEMICALS INVENTORY 10,319.82
120 - MERCHANDISE INVENTORY 3,704.32
125 - FOOD INVENTORY 1,811.96
Total 12100 - INVENTORY 15,836.10
130 - Prepaid Expense 1,959.90
170-4 - DELIQUENT TAX REC 40,622.55
Total Other Current Assets 58,418.55
Total Current Assets 3,595,832.35
Fixed Assets
150 - POOL EQUIPMENT 152,279.48
155 - CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 350,847.28
156 - LAND IMPROVEMENTS 491,894.25
157 - BUILDING & IMPROVEMENT 14,337,233.16
158 - EQUIPMENT 1,312,376.79
160 - ACCUMMULTED DEPRECIATION -10,050,474.01
175 - LAND APN#1320-30-411-005 1,353,232.09
Total Fixed Assets 7,947,389.04
Other Assets
171 - DEFERRED PENSION OUTFLOWS 410,899.00
Total Other Assets 410,899.00
TOTAL ASSETS 11,954,120.39
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
201 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 3,455.96
Total Accounts Payable 3,455.96
Credit Cards
202 - CITI VISA CREDIT CARD 4,732.30
Total Credit Cards 4,732.30
Other Current Liabilities
200 - PAYROLL LIABILITIES
221-1 - ACCRUED PAYROLL 51,916.80
221-2 - ACCRUED PAYROLL TAXES 9,545.51
229 - SUTA 1,566.13
234-3 - Aflac 32964
Total 200 - PAYROLL LIABILITIES 63,358.08

Page1



9:57 AM EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

01/04/24 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2023
Dec 31, 23
2110 - Direct Deposit Liabilities -1,065.58
218 - ACCRUED VESTED VAC PAY 23,617.84
219 - OPEB LIABILITY 21,913.00
235 - ACCRUED WORKMANS COMPENSATION -10,717.20
236 - NOTE PAYABLE - ZION 366,000.00
Total Other Current Liabilities 463,106.14
Total Current Liabilities 471,294.40
Long Term Liabilities
220 - NET PENSION LIABILITY 1,126,751.00
225 - DEFERRED PENSION INFLOWS 179,203.00
Total Long Term Liabilities 1,305,954.00
Total Liabilities 1,777,248.40
Equity
349 - RETAINED EARNINGS 6,273,238.34
351-1 - FUND BALANCE 1,452,260.17
355 - CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 1,648,952.81
Net Income 802,420.67
Total Equity 10,176,871.99
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 11,954,120.39

Rage 2




1EZ1L0°1S 1ejo)

JoyanQ dwa | -1S0d'aAEA JeUanq'moq|3 Buionpayiojesipul awoiyd|go orp HIVd3¥ ® JONYNILNIVIA - €69 5|00 0JOZ

Jajeaday Aousblaww3 Joj Jeq punoJb ppy|00°0LL | HIVd3y ' IONYNILNIVIN - €E9 oua[3 ydwnuy

abeqien/181epm |GR'LLL | HSVHL B ¥ILVM - ¥29 USPUI JO UMOL

Aued RepijoH [ze'08g S3ALLNIONI IIAOTINI - 0F9 1000 IXaN IIUD auL

Jayels abeyoA [InJ'siojdepy asoH sJaueds bumses Jies|zy 1SS HIVd3d ® 3ONYNILNIVIA - €E9 asnoH Aiddng

(neuuag'N'uaynws' W) Bunuudiabuii|ogog ALTIVS - Z¥9 Kiajes oignd 1deg-epensn JO lelS

66701 SNOILJINOSENS/SANA - 199 Rpodg

90'2.6'8} SVO IVHNLYN - 929 SY9 LSAMHLNOS

(sebap seT juoD) SWeH'S[6L°€L6 ISNIJXT 13AVYHL - 089 SaulllY 1SBMIN0S

SJaMOYS WooJ Jaxoo7 Joj subis[09°vs HIVdIY ® JONYNILNIVIA - €€9 ubispews

(eeg Jaemiapun) Ild V| 00 v AL3VS - Z2v9 J8jua) BUING eualg

soag Buideaxy008/Sy3d/ll0JAed £202 AON[00 0FZ 3ISNIdX3 ONILNNODIY - 169 ou| ‘'saoiaiag Bupjoog BualS

(Wps1eav) WO3|00'52 S3AILNIONI 3IA01JNT - 0F9 SWJEH UouUByS

ysedaq o8] 1o} S8a4|05°022 SLNIWLSNIray Xv.1 110HAVd - 6€9 92IAI3S [10JABd SH00EX2IND

¥E8# €202 99090 LY JONVHNSNI HLTV3H - #19 weibo.d syjeuag saakoldw3 dlignd

abiey) Buwinoay AljUoN|G6'6 LI-IYYMLIOS -Z€9 IIBM AW JBjsod

(€202 190) @34 @a1nas AlyIuon|10°G62 ISNIdXT INQHJI 3L - 129 ONI 'YINOO

BE'691'0L O1¥.10313 - 229 AB1au3 AN

M Buny wed[z9°ze HIVd3Y ® 3IDNYNILNIVIA - €£9 3207 JW

1EOINX9!1J Joj uBisuaor] i UORON|GZ 260 | ISNIJX3 vD31 - 069 Buisuaor] anjold UolOW

dmjoeg pnoiD1[s9'9 LI-3¥YMLIOS - ZE9 dioD 1osoLIN

gS0 %00lg BWE|] 8Xp| #6901 HIVd3Y ® JONYNILNIVIA - €€9 Sye3W

(e20z Ainr) sewen 57 abean|z1 89 JOVINW/LNINISHNGINIZY O.LNY - €89 uosuiqoy uApiey

O_:mn_. mn:owvmeI aJnssald r_m_I.ma_._mw ._m_.mi._mur__-_,mmmw__—z £8'6E1 S$S0JS) ulsnp

ung molg'sHogRSINN'‘ainsea ade Inpuod'saiddng Bunuied doeg Kisneg einjejy'sialid 193905 20598 HIVdIY ' IONVYNILNIVIN - £€9 jode@ awoH

(e202 AoN) ssejuud/siaidod ¢ Joj @ey AdoD [81'GZ 1 $311ddNS 321430 - S¥9 swajsAg ssauisng eudls ybiH

Joidepy|0g'L HIVd3H ® IDONYNILNIVIA - €9 Jabures

[emauay AlYIuo |66'62 LI-3HVALHOS - 229 Appeg 09

or'1G9'L SIDYYHI WILSAS AHLNT - €69 sjuswied [eqo|D

dwa] -1s0d 19Bd-IN UOIAI[ 11691 HIVdIY B IONYNILNIVIA - €69 asnoyaJep jeone4

sBuni4 mogi3"12%208 g IeLBIS BWeN |8 € HIVdIY 8 IONYNILINIVIA - £€9 Req3|

(Suiusieamg/siued) SWIOHUN 99UBUSIUIEIN|GE E0E SWHOJINN - ¥+9 U] sealebung

BuoT -sjuepuadaq (1)/14(z) £Z 920 @oueInsu| YieaH|85'G9E'S JONVHNSNI HLTVIH - #19 1ouisiq jooyas Auno) seibnog

€202 290 10BJU0D |00 0% JONYNILNIVIN 3dVISANYT - 9€9 BuideospueT] Jejs pasag

abealin[gl LE JOVITW/LNIWISHNEGWIZY OLNV - €89 Hoqqy euueag

Jadeg AdoD'Aajes |eiojuer'sano|’'pood[Ge L LG 02}509)

ALMBUIBI[6Y L¥E ISNIdXT INOHJITTL - 129 ssauisng Japeyd

¥SiA a)is AUIUoN|00'5L2 3ISNIJX3 ONILNNODIV - 169 0711 Bununoooy Asjlep uosied

sa)iddng Bunuied|€0'c9 HIYd3Y 8 3DNYNILNIVIA - €£9 LB Juled UosJe]

(e20z 920) @oueJnsu| dinb3/esea] Jaidod 65681 TYINIY LNIWJIND3 - #€9 S30IMAS |EOUBULS UOULED

s|eJniy dn yono 1 [00°0G€ HIVdIY 8 IONYNILINIVA - E€9 SYY |[auyong

(uosiajad'H esoLajuo "Hoduareq )00 1 Z1 AL3IVS - 2¥9 $S01) pay Ueousuly

asuadx3 pJeogieysep ainssald oupal3 'seliddng 3m'se)ddns pooAlejes ElueS Jo) n'se|ddns ao)o'sa)dd r'eoueusjuiepy'uonduasans| ez gLG* | LOZBLWY/|

pinbr apixoiq uogie] 78729k STVDIWIHD - 829 SYOuIV

SJ421)14 V| LE'BLE HIVdIH '? IONVYNILNIVIN - €€9 so|eg Jajlid Iy

3j1uy Ang‘ade] Julo[18ays ||lemAig Iuleg Ia WG MOJ11 | 'SISIQ PULIDSIBALIPMAIIS PIDY dBLININBN|d| 15 0ZE HIVd3H ® IONYNILNIVIA - €€9 alEMpJEH 80y
owaiy junowy JUnodY




%68'St S9'6PT'SE 00°TrI°s9 $9'878°C 0042228 SE'Z68'6Z 00'orr's 8L'GL0'S
%97 0€ 80°16£°01 00'668°F1 807759 0009}'s 26405y 00°€6l oL zzy
%trT6r 907966 0082961 90°€9¢ 00°22Z'0L r6'€99'6 00'gve'L #9012'L
%L6'8F 61'656'ST 00'S£8°0S 61°TLOT 00'896'9Z 18'568'vZ 00°/51's 8E'€29'C
%7608 TTLLLOYY 00°L89SOE’T ZT660°1T 00'600'989 8/'606'v99 00'9zs'e8 vZ'86.'c8
%tr9°LE TTL96 VI 00°000+T ITL96T 00'000°Z} 842806 00'ErL'E [# A4
%8109 91'£8S°TS 00°0L0°€E] (b8 ELLETL) 00'60£'99 va'Zer'os 0002€'9 09'652'S
10/AIa# 0t'€0T n 0F'€0T $ 000 0r'€02- 000 s¢'l-
%000 00°00£°S 00°00€°S o $ 000 000 000 000
%TE T8 89°EPSY 000009 (zeoes's) $ 000ZL'EL Ze9%Y'LZ 00'IbL'L 9159t
%000 00°00Z°1 000021 = $ 000 000 000 000
%ESLL 00°001°% 000SZ'81 00°29L°L $ 00'LLE'SL 00°05L'pL 00'9¥9 00'SLS
%90°8S SLLOY'L 00005°E 5286 $ 00'LELE STTE0T 00°0EL't SZT/60°L
%¥00F 11°961°1 00°566°1 LLeve $ 00'8r0'L 68'86. 000 SZ'8st
%0€ 9 0S°S8L 00'00Z°C (0s€2) $ 00'LPE'L 0SrLb'L 000 000
%08'T01 (zTEse) 0070006 (zz'eB0't) $ 00'65L'8 Z2TST'6 00566 BLELS
%8£09 rARCli 00°SZ0°I (88°88¢) $ 000€2 88819 00°Z4 86'SZ
%¥9'59 00951 00005y (00°zst'L) $ 00Z08't 00'S6'C 00°L¥Z 000
%S6 0F 86'LES'E 000059 86'8ZF $ 00'160'E 20299'C 00'825 1O LLE
%St'TT 00°18S°1 00000 00'15S'L $ 000002 00'6¥Y 00'LLL 000
%C9'LY LS8T6Y1 00'008°8T (ev'gez'e) $ 0098Z'0L EF'LIS'EL 00'LET 95'920't
%9¢' 1S 81°€TSy 00006 (zg'108) $ 006G.8' Z8'9LLY 00°4Lt S5 L0E
%L LT 01'8LS 00008 oLzzz $ 00vby 06122 00991 000
%89'8% 66'1L9'9 00°000°€1 (Lo'e90'e) $ 00692 10'82€'9 00'Le 000
%L9 'S £6'9£7°€9€ 00°00LF89 (60°L€8°61) 02'815'2EE 19'189'2LE 8€£'/£€'0¢8 6£'8EE'ST
%L9 9t 8€°1E6'0Z 00052 6€ S800¢'E 6LLLT Z9'8lE'sL SSEPY'L 18'8Z9
%L9 9 8€°1€6'0Z 00'05Z'6€ S8'007'E 6Lz Z981E'8L SSEY9'L 18'829
%Tr'11 06'Tht 00°00S 06'89¢S 00929 0L'LS 00'L9L 5582
%01°¥¢ 69°€T8 00°0ST°1 91°Z61 1’819 LE'9zZY $5°851 6761
%00°€S STLISY 00°0sZ°01 (5£7950°1) 009/ SLZEV'S 000 0Ee
%I1S'St PS L8P 00°0ST°LT $$'969°C 006609} or'Zop'h 00°0EE’t r'8ls
%lL St [€'891°V8€ 00'0S6°ETL (+6'LETET) L1'8ETHSE £T°000° €€ £6'986°1€ 0T L96'ST
%000 = 00°00S°81 (9¥'8TE°T) 00°2¢0°ZL ¥5'8LL'6 000 09'860'L
%LT 8Y S0+09°01 00005°0T S6' YT 00'159'6 S6'GE8'6 00818 SLSLE
%SS 9 SL'8TI'6T 00°00S°S (sLoLer’s) 00'605°2E STLIE'ST 00'€58'L STYEL'L
%LE S 1S’ SEVPre 00°0S¥°0€9 (89'910°%1) ZL'LE0'00E 67'¥10'982 £6'G1E'6Z 0z'618'2Z
15png jo Sulnewdy  198png [Bnuuy  DUBLIEA (LA  193png (LA €70T 2q-Inf 198png £207 2a

9, SE[BI0], (LA 193png [enuuy

IDONVANSNI HLTVAH - 19

INTWAOTIWINN ILVIS - €19

TAVOIAdN - 119

ALMNDES TVIOOS - 109

SADVM % STATAVIVS - 009

SASNAIXT AUVOd - 668
SASNAJXH TTOHAVd

JALLVILSININGAY ¥ TVHINTD [810],
LHOHS/HIAO HSVD - 08L
SHIA HILOA DA - ¥69
SADUVHD WIHLSAS AYLNT - €69
SADYVHD MNV - 769
ASNAIXT INLINQODODV - 169
ASNILXT TVOAT - 069
HOVHTIN/INIWSHNIINITH OLNYV - £89
STVIN - 189
ASNAIXH TIAVYL - 089
SNOILLAIIOSINS/SANd - 199
NOILVONAT %® SYVNIWAS - 099
SAI'TddNS ID1J40 - S¥9
NOILILVONAH ANV ONINIVIL T00d - 1+9
LI - JYVMLAOS - 7€9
ASNAIXT TVIMOLINVT - 1€£9
AOVISOd - 0£9
ONIINIHd/DONISILYIAQY - 679
HJALLVILSININAY ¥ TVHANTD
Jsuadxy
JJoIq S5015)
S90D 'L
a10S SAOO0D 40 LSOD a0 L
HIOVIIOLS dOOA - §95
SHI'TddNS AOO0d - 098
ASNILXT ASIANVHOUAN - SSS
ASNAIXH A00 - 0ss
dT0s SA009 40 LSOD
PIOS Sp00Y) JO 3507)
Jwodu| [e10],
HWODNI INVYD 86F
ASIANVHOUAN - L6Y
aood - 96r

SHAA HIASN - €or
woduy

asuadxjgpuodu] A1euIpiQ




%ZC 11 ($0'096°887) 00'PTL'TOL 16°9LT€IT 6L°LPL'S8S 16°999°708 (0Z°LZ0°LLI)  (SE€°LZ0°00T)
%65°L9 T9'LEV'ST6 00'0ZL'Z06T  8691€°€ZT 00'0L6'FEL 616261961 00 [LL°69 9E°LT6 1L
(0Z'SOF'L1) (0Z'06S°L) 0Z'SLLE %
(0zsov’I1) (00°0£9°L) 0Z065'L- 00'GL8'E 0ZSLL'E 000 000
%TL'LY T8 TP8'9E6 00'0ZLTO6T  81°L06°0ET 000L6VEL'L 6£ 0L 5961 00 1LL69 9E°LT6 1L
000 6LZLL- 000 000
%8861 ¥ (1+°085°15) 00°STI91 1¥'8%T°€9 00'L50'y 'S0 29 00'6SE'L SELVLEL
%9L 59 ETETT886 00'S65°988°T  LL'8S9°LI1 00'ELS'0EL'L 12°121'868°L 00'ZL¥'89 £0°081'8S
%6978 (99°26€71T°1)  (00966'661°T)  (LO'0F0°01) (1zzzeerl'l)  (8zz9T'6s1‘D)  (0T86L°081)  (1L4S6°1L1)
%E0' 1S 65 FEQ'LLS T 00'969F88°T  TOL6L'6 1607 18Y°[ 68 V6 1LY 1 85 SEI'TIT 01'€6T°L6]
%0008 00'0vT 6T 00°S1L°8ZS z 8v'/SE'YIZ 81 /SE 9T 85650t 85650 b
%08 95 00°011°6ZT 00'0£0°1ZS (LS'6EL°LT) £1'081°89T 00°0Z6°S6T 009691 YOSEI' Y
%L9°9 10065T 00'SLLT 10'Ev6 00'8ZL'} 6678l 0059 000
%9L 1€ LS65H'S 000008 LS bEY 00'6/6'C EYOPS'e 00'6tY SE'E0E
%6579 6L°0S1°T 00°0SL°S (1zg1L) 00'988'C 1Z'665'E 00's52 10'80€
%S 06 95°8SL 00°000°8 (++'TT0'€) 006LZF P LY. 00'LLL'L p19E
%E1F0I (9z'co1) 00005 (9z°€06) 00002 9Z'E09'T 002k ZE'LL9
%¥9LE LS9SE°L LS96L11 0029% 00°Z06' 00°0Ft't 0018 00°0FL
%8109 0S°€T6°1 000£8°F (0$+9¢) 002rs'T 059062 0022 65581
%99'9¢ SI'LEGOL 00000°C11 S1'8S8°L 00'L26'8y §9°290' LY 008450k SS'9E6'Y
%9T ¥t ¥8°LTT9E 00°000°69 ¥8°L8S°11 00°0gE'0r oL'zLL'eE 00'S0E'9 9v'888'C
%00°001 o £ ESHOE = SP'ESY'9E EY'ESH'OE 000 000
%SET9 8T°66£°001 000099 (TL'8LO'EY) 00'Z2ZZ'eZL z.'00€'99L 00°29%'LZ 64°108'08
%¥0°SL 19°€9%°¥T 00°000°86 (6£°s0t'sE) 00'LEL'BE 6E9ES'EL 00'698'L 90°Z/6'8L
%L8 6 08°TH0°C 00°SLOY 0812 00%50'2 02Z€0'C 000 000
%8L 6t SSSLLS 0000511 SS'L98 00'Z65'9 SHYZL'S 00°0ES Se'I8y
%LE'SS 9€'81Z°T9 00°SZ00F1 9ve6’L) 00'2.8'69 $9'908'2L 00'986'LL BE'69L'0L
%E9'IS o' LFOE 00°00£9 (¥soz) 00ZEL'E ¥S'TST'E 00Z2$ 05°ZrS
%L08S 0S'1S8°T 00°008°9 (0s°20¢) 00'LH'E T 00095 00'9E9
%18 8% £4'L69°0L8 007 188°T0L°1 EPOIETIS 006788 15'€8l'Le8 00'090'6L 1 88'8Z€'901
10/AT# (€rvin (EIvID 000 ELpLL 000 092201~
10/AIQ# 000 = o 000 000 000 000
10/ATC# 000 - - 000 000 000 000
I0/AIH# ($L'08€°1) 5 (s208€°D) 000 SL0BE'L 000 05022
%E€9°9¢ ovoLI‘LT 00'9L8°CTt 0F9ZLS 00°Zer'LZ 09'604'St 00ZLS'E 09°219'Z
%SL 6E 6V EELTLOT 00 FI8°8LI 6%'968°91 00°L46'L8 15080'LL 00°LLE'YL Z90LE'LL
198png jo Sutmeway  198png [enuuy  NUELEA (LA  W3png QLA €7 9q-Ine 128png £207 2d

9, SE [810], (LA 198png [enuuy

AW0dU] 1IN
wodu] PYIQ PN

asuadxy 124310 [BI0L
asuadxy 3saau] - 668

asmadxqg 12410

wodu] YO [BI0L
HWODNI YAH.LO - 66+
HINODNI LSTHALNI - 16¥

WHHO'TIVA AV - F'10¥
JWodU[ JIYIQ

asuadxjypwoduy 13410

Awoduy AreuipaQ) PN
asuadxy [ejo],

ASNAdXE NOLLVIDAHJAd - 0S8

SNOILVIAdO T00d 18101
INTWLINOT TIVIAS - 979
SIWHOJINN - #+9
SAI'TddNS - €9
ALAAVS - T+9
SHALLNIDNI AJAOTdNY - 0¥9
AINVNAINIVIN AdVISANYVT - 9€9
TVINTY INTNAINOT - $£9
VI ¥ IONVNILNIVIA - €€9
STVOINIHD - 879
HONVHUNSNI - £29

SALLITLLA [¥10],
SVO TVHNLVN - 979
AMIS - §Z9
ALV - +79
JIILDATA - 729
ASNAIXT ANOHIATAL - 129
AOVEEVO - 619
SALLITLLN
SNOILLVYAJO T00d
SASNAIXT TTOHYAV [¢I0L
NOILVOVA AQdNdIDV - £-019
SAXVL TTIOHAVI AANUDIDY - T-089
STOVM AANADIDV - 1-0r9
SINAWLSNALAY XV.L TIOYAVd - 6£9
NOLLVSNAdINOD SNVINEOM - LI9
SHAd - S19
(panunuo))




EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
AGENDA ACTION SHEET
Agenda Item #2
Title: For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action to elect the Chair and
Vice Chair for the Board of Trustees.
Background: In January of each year the Board of Trustees elects a Chair and Vice
Chair who serve in those positions for the next 12 months.
Funding: NA
Recommended
Motion: Move to approve the appointment of to serve as Chair and
to serve as Vice Chair.
Trustee Action: Approved
Denied
No Action

______ Other




EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

AGENDA ACTION SHEET

Agenda Item #3

Title: For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action on selecting a
qualified elector to serve the remainder of the term for Charles Douglas
Robbins. The appointed Trustee will take office on Thursday, February
29" 2024, and will serve until December 31, 2024,

Background: East Fork Swimming Pool District advertised the open Board of Trustees
position 2 times (Dec 16™ and 20", 2023) in the Record Courier and had a
flyer in the main office of the facility. One letter of interest was turned
into the Board Clerk, Sharon Thompson, by Allen Biaggi prior to the
deadline posted.

Funding: NA

Recommended

Motion: Move to approve as a qualified elector to serve the
remainder of the term for Charles Douglas Robbins. The appointed
Trustee will take office on Thursday, February 29" 2024, and will serve
until December 31%, 2024.

Trustee Action: Approved
Denied
No Action
Other




December 18, 2023

Sharon Thompson

Chairman

Carson Valley Swim Center

East Fork Swimming Pool District
P.O. Box 1972

Minden, Nevada 89423

Dear Chairman Thompson:

This letter is to express my interest in an appointment to the East Fork Swimming Pool District
as a trustee. The District provides unparalleled opportunities for Carson Valley's residents and
visitors to recreate in a safe and well-managed facility no matter the season. | believe | have a
unique set of skills and abilities to offer the District to maintain and enhance the recreational

experiences the facility affords for all to enjoy.

Understanding of the culture and facility

| am a third-generation resident of Douglas County. | grew up learning to swim at the County
pool and have continued to utilize and enjoy the Carson Valley Swim Center as an adult. I have a
unique, long-term perspective of Douglas County and understand the importance of the swim
center to the community. | have attended a number of Trustee meetings in the last 12 months

gaining valuable knowledge and insight into the facility’s management, budget, operations and
strategic direction.

Administrative and budgetary experience

| worked in state government for 31 years, the last 12 in positions appointed by three
Governors. As Director of the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, | was
responsible for more than 1000 employees with a biennial budget of nearly $300 million. After
retirement | opened my own natural resources consulting business which has been in operation
for 13+ years. | know how to create and follow a budget to ensure fiscal accountability to the
taxpayers and facility users.

Extensive experience on board and commissions

Throughout my career | sat on a number of boards and commissions. These include the Tahoe
Regional Planning Agency (including three years as its chairman), the Commission for Workplace
Safety, Nevada’s Sagebrush Ecosystem Council, the Tahoe Fund (including two years as
chairman), and the Bi-State Fire Commission, to name a few. | understand how boards work,
their dynamics, and the need to be an independent, yet thoughtful and cooperative member of
a team. In my opinion, leadership must be collaborative and focused, with an eye to the mission
of the facility while striving for constant improvement.




Resume of Allen J. Biaggi

For consideration of appointment to the East Fork Swimming Pool District Board of
Trustees

Allen Biaggi is a proud third generation Douglas County resident. Like his mother, father
and two children, Mr. Biaggi graduated Douglas High school. He went on to earn two
degrees at the University of Nevada, Reno. Mr. Biaggi had an extensive government
career in all aspects of environmental protection including water and air quality, water
allocation, solid and hazardous waste management, forest and rangeland health, and
private, state and federal land use policy. Mr. Biaggi owns and operates a natural
resources consulting business focusing on water policy, mining and redevelopment. He
has decades of experience with issues before the Nevada legislature (including as a
private lobbyist) and has testified before the U.S. Congress on multiple occasions. He
has been involved in complex litigation as well as negotiations with multiple parties on
controversial natural resource related matters.

EDUCATION

e Bachelor of Science, Watershed Management, University of Nevada, Reno, 1982

e Associate of Science, Architectural Design Technology, University of Nevada
Reno, 1980

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
o Principal, A. Biaggi & Associates, LLC, September 2010 — present

e Director, Nevada Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, July 2004 —
May 2010

e Administrator, Nevada Division of Environmental Protection, 1998 — July 2004

e Nevada Division of Environmental Protection, various positions of increasing
responsibility, May 1979 — July 2004

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
e Member, Nevada Supreme Court Commission on Adjudication of Water Law
Cases, appointed by the Nevada Supreme Court (2022)
e Nevada Sagebrush Ecosystem Council, appointed by Governor Brian Sandoval

e Member, Tahoe Regional Planning Agency Governing Board, (three years as
Chairman)

e Nevada/California Fire Commission (in response to the Lake Tahoe Angora Fire)
appointed by Governor Jim Gibbons

e Nevada Climate Change Commission, appointed by Governor Jim Gibbons

e Western States Water Council, appointed by Governor Kenny Guinn

o Commission on Workplace Safety (in response to the Sierra Chemical Explosion)
appointed by Governor Bob Miller

e Colorado River Salinity Control Forum

e Nevada State Board to Review Petroleum Claims




Regular facility user

I (and my wife) are frequent users of the Carson Valley Swim Center, which began 15 years ago
when we were training for triathlons. While my racing days are waning, | continue to regularly
use the pools and workout center. Spending a good bit of time there, | appreciate the day-to-
day care and maintenance of the facility and understand the hard work and effort that goes into
operating a high quality facility.

Water is my life

While the Swim Center is much more than just a swimming pool, water is its core mission. |
have devoted my life'and career to water as 3 hydrologist with more than four decades of
experience. | love to look at it, swim in it, and protect it. An appointment to the Board of
Trustees would continue my commitment and fascination with water.

The Carson Valley Swim Center is one of the best facilities of its kind in the west and, | would
venture, in the most beautiful setting in the country. Its governance and management is top
notch. Thank you in advance for your consideration of my application and appointment to the
Board of Trustees. | appreciate the work that all of you do, and | would enjoy joining you in
ensuring the swim center’s success in the future.

My resume is attached.

Sincerely,

Allen Biaggi
P.O, Box 741
Minden, Nevada 89423

775 781-2112




EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
AGENDA ACTION SHEET
Agenda Item #4
Title: Discussion Only. Discussion and update on the Capital Improvement Plan
ongoing projects.
Background: East Fork Swimming Pool District contracted with Aquatic Design Group
to complete an overall evaluation of the Carson Valley Swim Center’s
equipment. The capital improvement and maintenance priority list is a
combination of that report along with the center’s Director, Maintenance
Supervisor and Project Manager’s recommendations.
Funding: NA
Recommended Discussion only
Motion:
Trustee Action: Approved
Denied
No Action

Other




8/8779°T S

995'€TV‘T
6v9°12L'T ¥SSSLLT 32bpng [p31dp) 2, /€2,
w9 000°0€ 000'0€ Sue 19ssy Joj Aouagunnuo)
£60'T8T 55282 ¥#55°78¢ 1sAjeuy aniasay
7056 000°€T 000°€T Ajuno) sejSnog
'S 058791 GSL'TIT pueles/y1d
000°0S 000°0S 00005 Awuno) sej3noq
#85'89T°T SYZ'L8T'T SHZ'L8T'T NS/ wniuald
a|qeded syjuy asuadx3 128png Auedwo)p
Suuteway Jwunowy vzoz/€z0e
1oesuo)
Prv'1S0°E S
Is1€ Jaquiadaq
t202/€20¢ 4ea,A |easty

198png |ende)
123ud) wiMms A3jjep uosie)

d|qe|ieAy Spun4 uojPNIIsuo0) Sujujeway

() Aous8unuod

(ped pueis aAiq ‘Y| epe ‘woos dwnd yiom adidau yiom
Wweas apl|S ‘|9powal epe ‘pieoq SUIAIp ‘|lemyd0.U) ue|d Suey 1955y

(yBnojINJoIN 102S +Z,-€2,) JuawWwaseuey 103loud

(€2,-¢z,) uonelioisay Jooy
(3¥1) 34ed yseyds

uolsuedx3 apisise3

s109foud $202/€20T

|00d 1U3W1SaAU| JUIWIUIDA0L |BJ0T

:JO SE 3|e[IBAY SPUN4 UOI}ONJIISU0)




EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Agenda Item #5

Title:

Background:

Funding:

Recommended
Motion:

Trustee Action:

AGENDA ACTION SHEET

For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action on the proposal for
the EFSPD Parking Lot extension project from RO Anderson in the
amount of $134,500.

The Board of Trustees and Director have discussed, during public
meetings, the need for more parking spaces on the property owned by the
EFSPD. The conclusion was driven by board and staff observation,
comments from our patrons and safety.

The EFSPD will continue to have an MOU with the DCSD allowing the
continued use of DHS’s parking lot during times when overflow is needed
but the less patrons and staff have to walk across a busy street the safer.

RO Anderson’s proposal includes:

Topographic Site Survey

Schematic Site Planning

Design Development Documents

Geotechnical Investigation and Design Report

Flood Impact analysis

Construction Documents (100%) & Permitting Assistance

NA

Move to approve the proposal for the EFSPD Parking Lot extension
project from RO Anderson in the amount of $134,500.

Approved
Denied
No Action
Other



) Anderson

December 5, 2023
Via Email
Shannon Harris, Director

CARSON VALLEY SWIM CENTER
director@cvswim.com

c/o Scott McCullough, Project Manager
DOUGLAS COUNTY
smccullough@douglas.nv.us

EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT: Douglas County APN 1320-30-411-005
Parking and Site Circulation Improvements and Future Building Pad
Scope of Services and Fee Proposall

Dear Ms. Harris:

Thank you for the opportunity to provide Carson Valley Swim Center a proposal for the
planned parking lot extension and future building on the subject parcel, located adjacent
to your current facility.

Professional Services

To document the understanding between us as to the scope of services that R.O. Anderson
Engineering. Inc. (ROA) will perform, we are entering into this agreement with you. To avoid
any misunderstandings, this Scope of Services defines the tasks we will perform, the
deliverables that will be provided and the fee for the listed professional services.

Address: | 1590 Highway 88
APN: | 1320-30-411-005
Applicant/Client: | EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
Parcel Size: | 3.71 acres
Existing Land Use: | Vacant
Proposed Use: | Parking and Site Circulation Improvements and Future
Building Pad
Building Size: | To Be Determined
Entitlements Required: | Design Review, SIP, Building Permit
Zoning: | Multi-Family Residential 6.01-16 Dwelling Umfs/Acres
Flood Information: | FEMA Panel 32005C02334H eff. 6/15/2016 — Flood Zone AH

' This Scope of Services is also Exhibit A as referenced in the attached Agreement.

Physical Mailing » Minden, Nevada

1603 Esmeralda Avenue P.O. Box 2229 Reno, Nevada
Minden, Nevada 89423 Minden, Nevada 89423
®775.782.2322 B 775.782.2322




R O Anderson

Ms. Shannon Harris

c/o Mr. Scott McCullough
December 5, 2023

Page 2 of 7

Task 1: Topographic Site Survey

Under this initial task we will prepare a detailed topographic survey of the subject property.
The survey will include confirming and identifying the location of the property corners with
surveyor lath and flagging, establishing horizontal and vertical control on North American
Vertical Datum 1988 (NAVD 88), and completing the survey in sufficient detail to develop
elevation contours at one foot interval over the 3.7-acre site plus about 50 feet onto
adjacent sites including State Route Highway 88.

Budget: We offer these Task 1 services on a lump sum basis for a fee of $7,500
Timing: We will initiate our field surveying efforts to establish survey control within
10 working days of receipt of the authorization to proceed.
Deliverables: Deliverables will include site survey to verify and confirm existing
property boundaries, establish horizontal and vertical control points
proximate to the site, and a topographic survey of the site with one-foot
contour intervals for use with each of the remaining tasks.

Task 2: Schematic Site Planning

The schematic site planning efforts will include the development of up to three alternative
site plans that define the prospective locations of future building(s) as well as site circulation
and parking improvements to meet the District's long-term objectives for this property and
the campus as a whole. This task will consider and account for as appropriate pedestrian
access between the existing swimming pool facilities and the planned facilities for this
additional site, vehicle circulation and expansion of parking to meet planned uses.
Additionally, it is expected that this planning exercise will evaluate the potential of gaining
a fullmovement intersection to this new site from State Route Highway 88 and a perimeter
driveway to Mahogany Drive east of the existing swimming pool building, both of which are
expected to improve site circulation for visitors and users of these facilities.

Budget: We offer these Task 2 services on a lump sum basis for a fee of $8,500.

Timing: We will initiate these preliminary site planning efforts within five working
days of completing the field surveying efforts summarized in Task 1.
Initial site circulation and parking plans will be delivered and presented
for review within 30 days of authorization. Development and
presentation of additional versions of the schematic site plan will be
prepared and delivered for review within time periods as agreed to
during the site planning process.

Deliverables: Deliverables will include up to three alternative schematic site plans,
participation in the site planning process with the Client-selected
planning team. [t is anticipated that the final Schematic Site Plan will
be the basis of the design development drawings to be developed
under Task 3.

S:\PROPOSALS\Douglas County\Prop T S. Harris East Fork SPD RE Parking Area Extension and Future Building Pad.doc




R O Anderson

Ms. Shannon Harris

c/o Mr. Scott McCullough
December 5, 2023

Page 3 of 7

Task 3 - Design Development Documents (60%)
Under this task the Engineer will prepare and provide:

» The design development-level drawings of the planned improvements including civil
site, grading, and utility plans. We anticipate the following plan sheets will make up
the design development drawings:

o Preliminary Site/Utility Plan defining the extent of site circulation and parking
improvements, as well as public utility (water, sewer, storm drain, and power)
extensions needed to serve future building improvements.

o Preliminary Site Grading Plan including establishing proposed building pad
elevations to ensure future building improvements will be sufficiently elevated
to be safe from flooding and compliant with Douglas County's floodplain
management ordinance.

* Conceptual Drainage Study to document and identify storm water management
improvements required to meet Douglas County codes.

e Engineer’'s Estimate of Probable Construction Costs for permitting purposes.

*» We anticipate and will address up to one round of plan review comments.

Budget: We offer these Task 3 services on a lump sum basis for a fee of $25,500.

Timing: This task will be initiated with 15 days of authorization to proceed, and
the preliminary site development drawings and design reports will be
completed within 70 days of your authorization to proceed.

Deliverables: Design development level drawings as listed above, draft Conceptual
Drainage Report, and Engineer's Preliminary Estimate of Probable Site
Construction Costs.

Task 4 — Geotechnical Investigation and Design Report

The Engineer will sub-consult with a geotechnical engineer to undertake the site
investigation required to perform a geotechnical investigation and associated laboratory
testing necessary to develop geotechnical design recommendations for the project. The
scope of services will include research, field exploration, field and laboratory testing, and
engineering analyses fo allow formulation of geotechnical recommendations for design
and construction of site improvements proposed on this project site. Each of the above
items will be summarized in a report suitable for use by the project design team members
including architect and structural engineering firms that may be engaged in the future to
prepare the building design, and for sulbmittal to governing agencies for permitting
purposes.

Coordination with the subconsultant is included with this task.

Budget: This task will be provided on a lump sum basis for $13,500.

S\PROPOSALS\Douglas County\Prop T S. Harris Easf Fork SPD RE Parking Area Extension and Future Building Pad.doc




R O Anderson

Ms. Shannon Harris

c/o Mr. Scott McCullough
December 5, 2023

Page 4 of 7

Timing: This task will be initiated upon completion of the Schematic Design
Phase and completed and delivered concurrently with the design
development documents described above.

Task 5: Flood Impact Analysis

For project sites located within what is known to be a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) of
the Carson River, the county requires that a detailed flood impact analysis (FIA) be
prepared and submitted with any application. This requires the evaluation and
manipulation of the current two-dimensional hydraulic model of the Carson River that has
recently been approved by FEMA and adopted by Douglas County as the best available
information of flooding potential of the Carson River. Preparing the flood impact analysis
involves establishing a duplicate effective model that confirms the local modelling results
are consistent with the results within the adopted model. From that point, the proposed site
development improvements must be input info the model and the model files updated to
reflect the planned improvements at the site. The model is then operated for the purpose
of estimating and documenting potential impacts fo the water surface elevations and
adjacent properties resulting from construction of the proposed site improvements. As a
point of information, Douglas County code defines adverse impact as raising the base flood
elevations (BFE) 1.0-foot or greater. The county's code further establishes that changes of
the BFE of 0.5 feet or more on an adjacent parcel requires the applicant to prepare and
submit a Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) to FEMAZ,

Under this task, the Engineer will:

a. Solicit and obtain from either FEMA or Carson Water Subconservancy District the
current version of the pending two-dimensional hydraulic model.

b. Upload the data and operate the model on the Engineer's computers to verify
results are consistent with the base model - create a Duplicate Effective Model
(DEM)

c. Utilizing the topographic data collected under Task 1, knit the data into the terrain
model included in the base model and re-run the model to establish estimated
water surface elevations and flow paths reflective of the current topographic
conditions at the site - create a Corrected Effective Model (CEM).

d. Using the results of the Site Plan and Grading Plan developed in Task 3, input that
plan into the CEM and re-run the model fo establish estimated water surface
elevations in the post-project condition — create a Post-project Condition Model
(PCM).

e. Compare the water surface elevations determined from the PCM to the water
surface elevations derived from the CEM and report the results to the Client.

f. Prepare detailed Technical Memorandum summarizing results of the hydraulic model
including up to 6 supporting mapping exhibits defining each model run.

2The timing of FEMA to process a CLOMR is highly variable but in our experience not less than 8 months.

S\PROPOSALS\Douglas County\Prop T . Harris East Fork SPD RE Parking Area Extension and Future Building Pad.doc




R O Anderson

Ms. Shannon Harris

c/o Mr. Scott McCullough
December 5, 2023

Page 5 of 7

Budget: We offer these Task 4 services on a lump sum basis for a fee of $23,500.

Timing: This task will be initiated within 10 days of completing the topographic
site survey under Task 1 and completed within 15 calendar days of
completion of the Design Development drawings defined in Task 3
above.
Deliverables: Technical Memocrandum summarizing the results of the two-dimensional
hydraulic modelling efforts.

If, upon reviewing the results of the comparison of the PCM to the CEM, the Client wishes to
make changes to site grading and re-run the PCM, which is typically to avoid adverse
impacts or a requirement of a CLOMR, the Engineer will prepare a supplemental proposal
for the services needed to modify the Site Plan and Grading Plan to minimize observed
impacts. The supplemental proposal will include both the fee and the additional time
required to execute the models. Upon approval of that proposal for supplemental services
the Engineer will complete those tasks and re-run the model prior to preparing the Technical
Memorandum.

Task é6: Construction Documents (100%) and Permitting Assistance

Under this task, the Engineer will review and address client-provided comments on the
Design Development documents and prepare the construction documents at 0% level for
final permitting purposes. The Engineer will also prepare the final Technical Drainage Report
and construction specification sections for use and incorporation into the bid documents
and Project Manual. Additionally, the Engineer will prepare each of the necessary Site
Improvement Permit applications and supporting documents for submittal to each
reviewing agency, which is anticipated to be limited to:

¢ Douglas County Community Development

* Town of Minden (Water Supply and Fire Protection)

* Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District (Sewage collection, freatment and disposal)

» East Fork Fire & Paramedic District (Fire Protection)

Upon receipt of comments from each reviewing agency. the Engineer will address the
comments, update the drawings as necessary and re-submit for the final permit (100%
Drawings).

The Engineer will provide final construction specifications for use in the Project Manual, the
final Technical Drainage Report and an updated Engineer’s Estimate of Probable
Construction Costs.

Finally, the Engineer will prepare a draft SWPPP and Notice of Intent for submittal to Nevada
Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP) - the bureaus of Water Pollution Control and Air
Quality.

SA\PROPOSALS\Douglas Counfy\Prop T §. Harris East Fork SPD RE Parking Area Extension and Future Building Pad.doc




R O Anderson

Ms. Shannon Harris

c/o Mr. Scott McCullough
December 5, 2023

Page 6 of 7

Budgel: We offer these Task & services on a lump sum basis for a fee of $56,000.

Timing: We will initiate our efforts on the construction documents upon receipt
of comments from the Client and review agencies. We anticipate
having construction documents at 0% level for permitting purposes
within three weeks or receipt of initial client and agency review
comments on the Design Development documents. Within three weeks
of receipt of comments from the respective reviewing agencies on the
90% construction documents, we will have addressed the comments in
writing and will be ready to re-submit 100% construction documents for
final approval and permit issuance.

Deliverables: Construction documents including 100% plans; final Technical Drainage
Study; Construction Specifications; and written responses to comments
received from the respective review agencies. The Engineer will also
prepare a draft SWPPP and Notice of Intent and submit same to NDEP.

Summary of Exclusions
In general, this proposal does not include services or deliverables not specifically mentioned
above. These exclusions include but are not limited to the following.
* Any type of fees such as application, plan review, permit, bond, capacity or
connection, utility contracts
Traffic Impact Analysis or Traffic Study/Report, if required.
Encroachment Permitting Services through Nevada Department of Transportation
Materials (QC) testing during construction
Construction Surveying
Dry Utility (e.g., power, telephone, or natural gas) design
Permitting services not specifically offered above.

Unanticipated Services

If an unanticipated need for additional services arises—such as, litigation support, or any
other exogenous service not anticipated in this scope of services—ROA hereby agrees to
perform additional services at a mutually agreed-upon price. These additional services will
be priced separately utilizihng a Change Order.

Payment Terms

Work completed for tasks with a lump sum fee will be billed based on the estimated
percentage of service completed for each task during the previous month. If you wish to
discuss any matter related to our billing policies or a specific invoice, we encourage you to
contact us at the earliest opportunity.

Summary of Services
The table below summarizes the fee for each task and total proposed cost for these
professional services.

S:\PROPOSALS\Douglas County\Prop T 5. Harris East Fork SPD RE Parking Area Extension and Future Building Pad.doc




R O Anderson

Ms. Shannon Harris

c/o Mr. Scott McCullough
December 5, 2023

Page 7 of 7

LumpSum | $7.:
Task 2 | Schematic Site Planning Lump Sum $8.,500
Task 3 | Design Development Documents Lump Sum $25,500
Task 4 RGee';)CT;rafchnlccl Investigation and Design Lump Sum $13,500
Task § | Flood Impact Analysis Lump Sum $23,500
Task 6 E;’r‘;i*{;{g%sifg:gem (100%) & Lump Sum $56,000
TOTAL $134,500

Valid Until Date

The timing and fees outlined in this proposal are valid for a period of 60 calendar days from
the date of this letter, after which this firm can no longer commit to the proposed fee or the
proposed timing. Unexpected delays over which we have no control may also affect the
delivery date. Upon authorization, the terms in this proposal, including the price and timing,
will be valid for one year—after which the offered services may be amended, revised, or
revoked.

Please review the scope of services and fee proposal carefully. After reviewing these
documents should you have any questions or require any clarifications, please contact me
directly. | have anticipated that if authorized these services will be governed by Douglas
County's standard form agreement for professional services, which | expect you will send to
me when you are satisfied with the scope of services and fees. After receiving your
authorization, we will initiate our efforts.

Yours faithfully,
R.O. ANDERSON ENGINEERING, INC.

Robert O. Anderson, PE, WRS, CFM
Principal Engineer

Attachments - Standard Form Agreement

S:\PROPOSALS\Douglas County\Prop T 8. Harris East Fork SPD RE Parking Area Extension and Future Building Pad.doc




RIOA

STANDARD FORM AGREEMENT
BETWEEN R.O. ANDERSON ENGINEERING, INC. AND CARSON VALLEY SWIM CENTER
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT—effective as of 12/5/2023—between CARSON VALLEY SWIM CENTER ["CLIENT") and R.O. ANDERSON
ENGINEERING, INC. ("CONSULTANT'). CLIENT infends to secure Professional Engineering Services, including Site Improvements
and Future Building Pads on the property located at 1590 Highway 88 ("Project”]. CLIENT and CONSULTANT, in consideration
of their mutual covenants as set forth herein, agree as follows below.

ARTICLE 1 - SERVICES OF CONSULTANT

1.01 Scope

A. CONSULTANT shall provide the Basic and
Additional Services set forth and described in Exhibit A:
Scope of Services.

B. Upon this Agreement becoming effective,
CONSULTANT is authorized to begin the Scope of Services
set forth in Exhibit A,

ARTICLE 2 - CLIENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES

2.01 General
CLIENT shall have the responsibilities set forth herein;

A. Provide all criteric and full information as to
CLIENT's requirements for the PROJECT, including design
objectives and constraints; space, capacity, and
performance requirements; flexibility and expandability;
and any budgetary limitations; and fumish copies of all
design and construction standards which CLIENT will
require fo be included in the Drawings and Specifications.

B. Assist CONSULTANT by placing at CONSULTANT's
disposal all avadilable information pertinent to the PROJECT
including previous reports and any other data relative to
design or construction of the PROJECT.

C. Fumish to CONSULTANT, as required for
performance of CONSULTANT's basic services, the
following:

1. Data prepared by or services of others,
including without limitation borings, probings, and
subsurface explorations; hydrographic surveys;
laboratory tests; and inspections of samples,
materials, and equipment;
2. Appropriate professional interpretations of all
of the foregoing;
3. Environmental assessment and impact
statements, if required by any governmental
authority;
4. Previous property, boundary, easement, right-
of-way, topographic and utility surveys;
5. Property descriptions;
6. Zoning, deed, and other land use restrictions;
and,
7. Other special data or consultations not
covered in Arficle 2;
All of which CONSULTANT may use and rely upon in
performing services under this AGREEMENT.

D. Arange for access fo and make all provisions for
CONSULTANT to enter upon public and private property as
required for CONSULTANT to perform services under this
AGREEMENT,

E. Examine all studies, reports, sketches, Drawings,
Specifications, proposals, and other documents presented
by CONSULTANT, obtain advice of an attorney, insurance
counselor, and other consultants as CLIENT deems
appropriate for such examination and render in writing
decisions pertaining thereto within a reasonable time so as
not to delay the services of CONSULTANT.

F. Fumnish approvals and permits from all
governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the
PROJECT and such approvals and consents from others as
may be necessary for completion of the PROJECT.

G. Give prompt written notice to CONSULTANT
whenever CLIENT observes or otherwise becomes aware
of any development that affects the scope or timing of
CONSULTANT's services, or any defect or nonconformance
in the work of any Contractor.

H. Bears all costs incident to compliance with the
requirements of Article 2.01.

ARTICLE 3 - TIMES FOR RENDERING SERVICES

3.01 General

A. CONSULTANT's services and compensation under
this Agreement have been agreed to in anticipation of the
orderly and continuous progress of the Project through
completfion. Unless specific periods of time or specific
dates for providing services are specified in this
Agreement, CONSULTANT's obligation to render services
hereunder will be for a period which may reasonably be
required for the completion of said services.

B. If in this Agreement specific periods of time for
rendering services are set forth or specific dates by which
services are to be completed are provided, and if such
periods of time or dates are changed through no fault of
CONSULTANT, the rates and amounts of compensation
provided for herein shall be subject to equitable
adjustment. If CLIENT has requested changes in the scope,
extent, or character of the Project, the time of
performance and compensation for CONSULTANT's
services shall be adjusted equitably.

3.02 Suspension

A. If CLIENT fails to give prompt written authorization
to proceed with any phase of services after completion of
the immediately preceding phase, or if CONSULTANT's
services are delayed through no fault of CONSULTANT,
CONSULTANT may, after giving 7 days' written notice to
CLIENT, suspend services under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 4 - PAYMENTS TO CONSULTANT

Standard Form Agreement
Page 1 of 6




4.01 Methods of Payment for Services and Reimbursable
Expenses of CONSULTANT

A. For Basic Services. CLIENT shall pay CONSULTANT
for Basic Services performed or furnished, on an hourly or
lump sum basis as specified in Exhibit A: Scope of Services
accompanying this document.

B. For Reimbursable Expenses. In addition to
payments provided for in paragraphs 4.01.A, CLIENT shall
pay CONSULTANT for Reimbursable Expenses incurred by
CONSULTANT and CONSULTANT's Subconsultants at cost +
10% for said reimbursable expenses. Reimbursable
Expenses may include the following:

1. Subconsultants hired at the CLIENT's request
for services not included in Exhibit A.

2. Application costs or fees advanced on the
CLIENT's behalf.

3. Fees paid to state or local agencies for
required documents (e.g. Recorder's Office,
Assessor's Office).

4.02 Other Provisions Concerning Payments

A. Initial Payment. Upon execution of this
Agreement, CLIENT shall provide any Initial Payment
required in Exhibit A: Scope of Services accompanying this
document. This Initial Payment is non-refundable and is
the minimum fee due CONSULTANT and is eamed upon
receipt.

B. Preparation of Invoices. Invoices will be prepared
in accordance with CONSULTANT's standard invoicing
practices and will be submitted to CLIENT by CONSULTANT,
unless otherwise agreed. Tasks with an hourly rate will be
billed according to the current hourly rate schedule; each
monthly invoice will be calculated based on the actual
time incurred on the Project during the biling period
according to the Consultant Hourly Rate Schedule in effect at
the time services are performed. Work completed for tasks
with a lump sum fee will be billed based on the estimated
- percent of project completed during the previous month.
Scheduled payments will be due as identified in the Scope
of Services.

C. Payment of Invoices. Invoices are due and
payable upon receipt uniess otherwise stated in Exhibit A:
Scope of Services. CONSULTANT is under no duty torelease
deliverables, make submittals or appear at public
meetings on behalf of CLIENT to testify and provide
opinions until the scheduled payment is received. If CLIENT
fails fo make any payment due CONSULTANT for services
and expenses within 30 days after receipt of
CONSULTANT's invoice therefore, the amounts due
CONSULTANT will be increased at the rate of 1.5% per
month (or the maximum rate of interest permitted by law,
if less) from said thirtieth day. In addition, CONSULTANT
may, after giving 7 days' written notice to CLIENT, suspend
services under this Agreement until CONSULTANT has been
paid in full all amounts due for services, expenses, and
other related charges. Payments then received will be
credited first to interest and then to principall.

D. Disputed Invoices. In the event of a disputed or
contested invoice, only that portion so contested may be
withheld from payment, and the undisputed portion willbe

RIOA

paid.
E. Payments Upon Termination.

1. In the event of any termination .under
paragraph 6.06, CONSULTANT will be entitled to
invoice CLIENT and will be paid for all services
performed or furnished and all Reimbursable
Expenses incurred through the effective date of
termination.

2. In the event of termination by CLIENT for
convenience or by CONSULTANT for cause,
CONSULTANT, in addition to invoicing for those
items identified in subparagraph 4.02.D.1, shall be
entifled to invoice CLIENT and shall be paid a
reasonable amount for services and expenses
directly attributable to termination, both before
and after the effective date of termination.

ARTICLE 5 - OPINIONS OF COST

5.01 Opinions of Probable Construction Cost

A. CONSULTANT's opinions of probable Construction
Costs provided for herein are to be made on the basis of
CONSULTANT's experience and quadlifications and
represent CONSULTANT's best judgment as an
experienced and qualified professional generally familiar
with the industry. However, since CONSULTANT has no
control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or
services fumished by others, or over the Contractor's
methods of determining prices, or over competitive
bidding or market conditions, CONSULTANT cannot and
does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual
Construction Cost will not vary from opinions of probable
Construction Cost prepared by CONSULTANT. If CLIENT
wishes greater assurance as to probable Construction
Cost, CLIENT shall employ an independent cost estimator.

5.02 Opinions of Total Project Costs
A. CONSULTANT assumes no responsibility for the
accuracy of opinions of Total Project Costs,

ARTICLE 6 - GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS

6.01 Standards of Performance

A. The standard of care for all professional consuliing
and related services performed or fumnished by
CONSULTANT under this Agreement will be the care and
skill ordinarily used by members of CONSULTANT's
profession practicing under similar circumstances at the
same time and in the same locality. CONSULTANT makes
no warranties, express or implied, under this Agreement or
otherwise, in connection with CONSULTANT's services.

B. CONSULTANT shall be responsible for the technical
accuracy of its services and documents resulting
therefrom, and CLIENT shall not be responsible for
discovering deficiencies therein. CONSULTANT shall
correct such deficiencies without additional
compensation except to the extent such action is directly
attributable  to  deficiencies in  CLIENT-furnished
information.

C. CONSULTANT shall perform or furnish professional

Standard Form Agreement
Page 2 of é




consulting and related services in all phases of the Project
to which this Agreement applies. CONSULTANT shall serve
as CLIENT's prime professional for the Project. CONSULTANT
may employ such CONSULTANT's Subconsultants as
CONSULTANT deems necessary fo assist in  the
performance or furnishing of the services, CONSULTANT
shall not be required to employ any CLIENT's Consultant
unacceptable to CONSULTANT.

D. CONSULTANT and CLIENT shall comply with
applicable Laws or Regulations and CLIENT-mandated
standards. This Agreement is based on these requirements
as of its Effective Date. Changes to these requirements
after the Effective Date of this Agreement may be the
basis for modifications to CLIENT's responsibilities or to
CONSULTANT's scope of services, times of performance, or
compensation.

E. CLIENT shall be responsible for, and CONSULTANT
may rely upon, the accuracy and completeness of all
requirements, programs, instructions, reports, data and
other information furnished by CLIENT to CONSULTANT
pursuant to this Agreement, CONSULTANT may use such
requirements, reports, data, and information in performing
or furnishing services under this Agreement.

F.  CLIENT shall make decisions and carry out its other
responsibilities in a timely manner and shall bear all costs
incident thereto so as not to delay the services of
CONSULTANT.

G. During the Construction Phaose, if any,
CONSULTANT shall not supervise, direct, or have control
over Contractor's work, nor shall CONSULTANT have
authority over or responsibility for the means, methods,
techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction
selected by Contractor, for safety precautions and
programs incident to the Contractor's work in progress, nor
for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and
Regulations applicable to Contractor to comply with Laws
and Regulations applicable to Contractor's furnishing and
performing the Work,

H. CONSULTANT neither guarantees the
performance of any Contractor nor assumes responsibility
for any Contractor's failure to furnish and perform the Work
in accordance with the Contract Documents.

I. The General Conditions for any construction
contract documents prepared hereunder are to be the
"Standard General Conditions of the Construction
Contract” as prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract
Documents Committee (Document No. 1910-8, Latest
Edition) unless both parties mutually agree to use other
General Conditions.

J. Because applications for project entitiements,
plan reviews, or project-related permits are issued at the
discretion of the agencies having review authority and
jurisdliction, CONSULTANT cannot and does not guarantee
the approval of any application, plan review, or permit nor
the acceptability of the conditions imposed by the
reviewing agency. CLIENT acknowledges the above and
understands that CONSULTANT does not guarantee the
approval of any application, plan review, or project-
related permit.

6.02 Authorized Project Representatives

A. Contemporaneous with the execution of this
Agreement, CONSULTANT and CLIENT shall designate
specific individuals to act as CONSULTANT's and CLIENT's
representatives with respect to the services to be
performed or furnished by CONSULTANT and
responsibilities of CLIENT under this Agreement. Such
individuals shall have authority to transmit instructions,
receive information, and render decisions relative to the
Project on behalf of each respective party.

6.03 Design without Construction Phase Services

A. It is understood and agreed that if CONSULTANT's
Basic Services under this Agreement do not include Project
observation, or review of the Contractor's performance, or
any other Construction Phase services, and that such
services will be provided by CLIENT, then CLIENT assumes
all responsibility for interpretation of the Contract
Documents and for construction observation or review
and waives any claims against the CONSULTANT that may
be in any way connected thereto.

6.04 Use of Documents

A. All Documents are instruments of service in
respect to this Project, and CONSULTANT shall retain an
ownership and property interest therein (including the right
of reuse at the discretion of the CONSULTANT) whether or
not the Project is completed.

B. Copies of CLIENT-furnished data that may be
relied upon by CONSULTANT are limited to the printed
copies (also known as hard copies) that are delivered to
the CONSULTANT. Files in elecfronic media format of text,
data, graphics, or of other types that are furnished by
CLIENT to CONSULTANT are only for convenience of
CONSULTANT. Any conclusion or information obtained or
derived from such electronic files will be at the user's sole
risk.

C. Copies of Documents that may be relied upon by
CLIENT are limited to the printed copies (also known as
hard copies) that are signed or sealed by the
CONSULTANT. Files in electronic media format of text,
data, graphics, or of other types that are furnished by
CONSULTANT to CLIENT are only for convenience of
CLIENT. Any conclusion or information obtained or derived
from such electronic files will be at the user's sole risk.

D. When fransferring documents in electronic media
format, CONSULTANT makes no representations as to long
term compatibility, usability, or readability of documents
resulting from the use of software packages, operating
systems, or computer hardware differing from those used
by CONSULTANT at the beginning of this Project. Uniess
explicitly stated in the Agreement, CONSULTANT is not
obligated to release electronic data.

E. CLEENT may make and retain copies of
Documents for information and reference in connection
with use on the Project by CLIENT. Such Documents are not
intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by CLIENT
or others on extensions of the Project or on any other
project. Any such reuse or modification without written
verification or adaption by CONSULTANT, as appropriate

Standard Form Agreement
Page 3 of &




for the specific purpose intended, will be at CLIENT's sole
risk and without liability or legal exposure to CONSULTANT
or to CONSULTANT's Subconsultants. CLIENT shall indemnify
and hold harmless CONSULTANT and CONSULTANT'S
Subconsultants from all claims, damages, losses, and
expenses, including attorney's fees arising out of or
resulting therefrom.

F. If there is a discrepancy between the electronic
files and the hard copies, the hard copies govern.

G. Any verification or adaption of the Documents for
extensions of the Project or for any other project will entitle
CONSULTANT to further compensation at rates to be
agreed upon by CLIENT and CONSULTANT.

6.05 Insurance

A. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain
professional liability insurance with a limit of $1,000,000 per
occurrence.

B. CLIENT shall require Contractor to purchase and
maintain general liability and other insurance as specified
in the Contract Documents and to cause CONSULTANT
and CONSULTANTs Subconsultants to be listed as
additional insured with respect to such liability and other
insurance purchased and maintained by Contractor for
the Project.

C. At any time, CLENT may request that
CONSULTANT, at CLIENT's sole expense, provide additional
insurance coverage, increased limits, or revised
deductibles that are more protective than those otherwise
provided. If so requested by CLIENT, with the concurrence
of CONSULTANT, and if commercially available,
CONSULTANT shall obtain and shall require CONSULTANT's
Subconsultants to obtain such additional insurance
coverage, different limits, or revised deductibles for such
periods of time as requested by CLIENT.

6.06 Termination
A. The obligation to provide further services under
this Agreement may be terminated:
1. Forcause,

a. By either party upon 30 days’ written notice
in the event of substantial failure by the other
party to perform in accordance with the terms
hereof through no fault of the terminating party.

b. By CONSULTANT:

1) upon 7 days' written notice if
CONSULTANT believes that CONSULTANT is
being requested by CLIENT to furnish or
perform services contrary to CONSULTANT's
responsibilities as a licensed professional: or

2) upon 7 days' written notice if the
CONSULTANT's services for the Project are
delayed or suspended for more than 90 days
for reasons beyond CONSULTANT's control.

3) CONSULTANT shall have no liability to
CLIENT on account of such termination.

C. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this
Agreement will not terminate as a result of such
substantial failure if the party receiving such
notice begins, within seven days of receipt of such

RIOA

notice, to comect its failure to perform and
proceeds diligently to cure such failure within no
more than 30 days of receipt thereof: provided,
however, that if and to the extent such substantial
failure cannot be reasonably cured within 30 day
period, and if such party has diligently attempted
to cure the same and thereafter continues
diligently to cure the same, then the cure period
provided for herein shall extend up to, but in no
case more than, é0 days after the date of receipt
of the notice.

6.07 Controlling Law
A. This Agreement is to be governed by the laws of
the state of Nevada.

6.08 Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries

A. CLIENT and CONSULTANT each is hereby bound
and the partners, successors, executors, administrators,
and legal representatives of CLIENT and CONSULTANT
(and fo the extent permitted by paragraph 6.08.8 the
assigns of CLIENT and CONSULTANT) are hereby bound to
the other party to this Agreement and to the partners,
successors,  executors, administrators, and  legal
representatives (and said assigns) of such other party, in
respect of all covenants, agreements, and obligations of
this Agreement.

B. Neither CLIENT nor CONSULTANT may assign,
sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest (including, but
without limitation, monies that are due or may become
due] in this Agreement without the written consent of the
other, except to the extent that any assignment,
subletting, or transfer is mandated or restricted by law.
Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written
consent to any assignment, no assignment will release or
discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility
under this Agreement.

C. Unless expressly provided otherwise in this
Agreement: Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed
to create, impose, or give rise to any duty owed by CLIENT
or CONSULTANT to any Contractor, Contractor's
subcontractor, supplier, other individual or entity, or to any
surety for or employee of any of them.

6.09 Dispute Resolution

A. CLIENT and CONSULTANT agree to negotiate all
disputes between them in good faith for a period of 45
days from the date of notice prior to exercising their rights
under other provisions of this Agreement, or under law. In
the absence of such an agreement, the parties agree to
submit the matter to confidential non-binding mediation.
If such mediation efforts are not successful, the parties
agree fo submit the dispute to confidential binding
arbitration. The Federal Arbifration Act shall then govemn
this arbitration clause and any and all related court
proceeding(s) shall be sealed.

B. Attorney's Fees and Costs: The prevailing party in
such a dispute shall be awarded all costs and attorney's
fees incurred through all appeals and enforcement of
judgment or award, including, without limitation, all costs

Standard Form Agreement
Page 4 of 6




and attomey's fees in related contempt proceedings,
gamishments, execution, levy, debtor and third-party
examinations, bankruptcy litigation and  discovery,
whether before, after or during any trial.

6.10 Hazardous Environmental Condition

A. CLIENT represents to CONSULTANT that to the best
of its knowledge a Hazardous Environmental Condition
does not exist.

B. CLIENT has disclosed to the best of its knowledge
to CONSULTANT the existence of all Asbestos, PCB's,
Petroleum, Hazardous Waste, or Radicactive Material
located at or near the Site, including type, quantity, and
location.

C. CLENT acknowledges that CONSULTANT s
performing professional services for CLIENT and that
CONSULTANT is not and shall not be required to become
an “arranger,” "operator,” "generator,” or “transporter’ of
hazardous substances, as defined in the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act
of 1990 (CERCLA), which are or may be encountered at or
near the Site in connection with CONSULTANT's activities
under this Agreement.

6.11 Allocation of Risks
A. Indemnification

1. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold harmiless
CLIENT, CLIENT's officers, directors, partners, and
employees from and against any and all costs,
losses, and damages (including but not limited to
all fees and charges of engineers, architects,
attorneys, and other professionals, and all court or
arbitration or other ‘dispute resolution costs)
caused solely by the negligent acts or omissions of
CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT's officers, directors,
partners, employees, and CONSULTANT's
Subconsultants in the performance and furnishing
of CONSULTANT's services under this Agreement.
2. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CLIENT
shall indemnify and hold harmiess CONSULTANT,
CONSULTANT's  officers, directors, partners,
employees, and CONSULTANT's Subconsultants
from and against any and all costs, losses, and
damages (including but not limited to all fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and
other professionals, and all court or arbitration or
other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by
the negligent acts or omissions of CLIENT or
CLIENT's officers, directors, partners, employees,
and CLIENT's consultants with respect to this
Agreement or the Project.

3. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
CONSULTANT's total liability to CLIENT and anyone
claiming by, through, or under CLIENT for any cost,
loss, or damages caused in part by the
negligence of CONSULTANT and in part by the
negligence of CLIENT or any other negligent entity
or individual, shall not exceed the percentage
share that CONSULTANT's negligence bears to the

RIOA

total negligence of CLIENT, CONSULTANT, and all
other negligent entities and individuals.

4. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the total
liability, in the aggregate, of CONSULTANT and
CONSULTANT’s officers, directors, employees,
agents, consultants to CLIENT and anyone
claiming by, through or under CLIENT, for any and
all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, or damages
whatsoever arising out of or in any way reloted to
CONSULTANT's services, the project or this
agreement, from any cause or causes
whatsoever, including but not limited to,
negligence, strict liability, breach of coniract or
breach of warranty shall not exceed the total
compensation received by CONSULTANT under
this agreement.

5. This allocation of risk clause does not change
the substantive law governing professional
negligence liability including, but not limited to,
the application of the Economic Loss Doctrine.

6.12 Notices

A. Any notice required under this Agreement will be
in writing, addressed to the appropriate party at its address
on the signature page and given personally, or by
registered or certified mail postage prepaid, or by a
commercial courier service. All notices shall be effective
upon the date of delivery.

6.13 Survival

A. All express representations, indemnifications, or
limitations of liability included in this Agreement will survive
its completion or termination for any reason.
6.14 Severability

A. Any provision or part of the Agreement held to be
void or unenforceable under any Laws or Regulations shall
be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall
confinue to be valid and binding upon CLIENT and
CONSULTANT, who agree that the Agreement shall be
reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof
with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close
as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken
provision.
6.15 Waiver

A. Non-enforcement of any provision by either party
shall not constitute a waiver of that provision, nor shall it
affect the enforceability of that provision or of the
remainder of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 7 - EXHIBITS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS

7.01 Exhibits Included

A. Exhibit A: Consultant's “Scope of Services"
B. Exhibit B: NA

C. Exhibit C: NA

D. Exhibit D: NA

7.02 Total Agreement
A. This-Agreement (consisting of pages 1 to 6
inclusive, together with the Exhibits identified above)

Standard Form Agreement
Page 5 of 6




RIOA

constitutes the entire agreement between CLIENT and written instrument.
CONSULTANT and supersedes all prior written or oral
understandings. This Agreement may only be amended,
supplemented, modified, or canceled by a duly executed

IN WITNESS WHERECF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the Effective Date indicated on Page 1.

CONSULTANT CLIENT
R.O. ANDERSON ENGINEERING, INC. CARSON VALLEY SWIM CENTER

Robert O. Anderson, PE, CFM, WRS ﬂ{ Shannon Harris
Principal Engineer Director
Date: 12/5/2023 Date:

Address for giving notices Address for giving nofices

P.O. Box 2229 1600 Highway 88
Minden, Nevada 89423 Minden, NV 89423
Designated Representative (par. 6.02.A) Client Contact Information
Robert O. Anderson, PE, CEM, WRS Phone: Please provide phone number.
Principal Engineer Fax: Please provide if applicable
Phone: 775.215.5026 Email: director@cvswim.com
Fax: 775.782.7084
E-mail: randerson@roanderson.com Designated Representative (par. 6.02.A)
Name:
Title:
Phone:
Fax:
E-mail:

Standard Form Agreement
Page 6 of &




EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
AGENDA ACTION SHEET

Agenda Item #6

Title: Discussion Only. Discussion of the proposed *24-*25 operating budget, 5
year capital improvement budget and population trends of Douglas
County.

Background: The Board of Trustees will review the tentative budget during the J anuary
and February Board meetings. In March, the Board will approve the
budget which will be filed with the Nevada Department of Taxation by
April 15™, 2024.

Funding: NA

Recommended

Motion: Discussion Only.

Trustee Action: Approved

Denied
No Action

Other




SONUAADY [BISUDL)

TITISLS 970T —ST0T 18I0 L

P2192dx2 51S00 [BUOLIPPE ON - xe] Auadorg 000°0¢ AouaBunuo))
SINUIAY [BIOUAD)
pa10adxa §1500 [RUOTIIPPE ON - xe] Auedoig 000°ST Jjuoweeury 102fo1g
(ToL2xg
jured 107 Sujled 20BLINSY
SONUAY [BIAUAD) 21T°96¢ Irey) O ‘pieog 21009)
Pa192dx2 $1500 [BUOHIPPE ON - xe ] Auadorg JUSWRZBURIA] 19SSV
INUIADY [BISUIL) (uorsuedxg 107 Sunje)
P2192dx2 $1500 [BUOL)IPPE ON - xe] Auedorg 000°0S€ 199[014 JuawaAoxdwy [eyrder)
STBd X JAL] IXoN 913 JO ERNTIITS 150D 9707 -S0T T8I [BISI]
Yory J10J $)S0)) UBUIUIRIA] [BUONIPPY Surpuny pasodoig wa)
8SLST6'CS ST0T — vT0T 18101
SONUAY [BIAUID)
Pa102dxa $1500 [RUONIPPE ON] - xe] Auadoig 000°0€ Kouagunuo)
SONUIADY [BIUI0)
Pa192dxa 51500 [BUOT)IPPE ON - xe] Azedorg 000°S1T jusuaeuRy 192f01g
(1oued AN

P2102dx0 $)500 [RUOT)IPPE ON

SANUAADY [BIIUID)
- xeJ, Auadorg

86L°08C ‘Y VAV ‘SKOJ [004 A1ANOY)
JUIWATBURIA] 19SSy

(M0ST Torerouan ‘ped yselds AL
(3S3) "aoxduwy prex Jurep
‘uorsuedxq UoISSA0UO))

ANUIADY [BISUDL) W9'Z ‘Topowray Aqqo)
Pa10adxa $1509 [RUON)IPPE ON - xe] Aradorg 102[o014 yuamwaAoxduy [eyde)
STBd X JAT] JXIN 213 JO EREITIN 150D ST0C -P70T 189X [BIST
OB 10J $1800) UBUIUIB[A] [BUODIPPY Surpuny pasodoig wa)y

"IOPISU0D 0) pIeog (IdSAH Y} 10 s18dK G 1XdU 3} 10§ JuswaAoIdw] [eyde)) Uo PaIews? $)S00 PUB SEIPT ATBUIUI[AI]

S€00°0SE€ SUN AL AAAINOTA SV
SUVHA TAIA LXAN JHL A0 HOVA Y04 SLSOD ONLLVIAdO AALDALOUd ONIANTINI
NVId INFINIAOIYJINI TV.LIAVD AVAA AAIA AALDArOAd
LOTALSIA TOOd ONIWIAIAS MHO0A ISVA




SONUIAY [BIAUAL)

SEST09T° TS

8T0T — LTOT B0

paroadxa §)500 [BUOHIPPE ON - xe], Auadorg 000°0¢€ KouaSunuo))
SONUIAYY [BIAUD) (uorsuedxy asnnnyy onenby)
Pa103dxa $1500 [RUONIPPE ON - xe] Auadorg 000°00C S9IpNMIS DV WI[R1]
SONUIAIY [BISUID)
Pa100dxa $1502 [eUONIPPE ON - xe] Auadoig 000°ST Juawageur A 10301
(sdumg ‘puerg o1
SINUIAIY [BIAUIL) ‘ Nuel 70D ‘preog Sundg)
Pa10adxa $)502 [RUONIPPE ON - xe] Auadoig GEEeLY, JuoWOTRURA 19SSy
(90BFINSY Y091
SNUIAJY [BISUIL) ured/19)seq Joopuy)
Pajoadxa §)S09 [RUONIPPE ON - xe], Aedorg 000°8¢€8 s100f014 Juowasordury [ede))
SIBJ { JAL] JXaN 91} JO 301N0Yg 150D 8707 -LT0T 183X [8oSI]
YOr] J0J $1S00) NUBUIUIBIA [BUOHIPPY Surpuny pasodoig wI)
SOLO0L 1S LT0T —9Z0T w10,
SINUIAY [BIDUID)
pajoadxa §)500 [RUOTIIPPE ON] - xe] Auadoig 000°0¢€ AouaZunuo))
SONUIAIY [BIAUAL) (uorsuedxg asnnny onenby)
Paroadxa §1502 [BUONIPPE ON - xe] Aradorg 000°00T SaIpmI§ DV W1
SONUIADY [BIoUID)
Pa19adxa 51500 [BUOT)IPPE ON] - xe] Auedoig 000°ST JuswaSeURA 10901
(aredoy] Memapig ‘uoiy
SONUIADY [BISUIN) JySnoIp ‘sioyeadsg)
pa10adxa $1500 [BUOTIIPPE ON - xe] Aradorg SOLTII JUSWASRUR]A] 19SSV
ANUIAIY [BIAUD) (wooy JI HY)
po10adxa §)500 [RUOTIIPPE ON - xe] A1adorg 000°0S L s100f01 Juawanoxduy [ende)
STBI X 9AL] IXoN 1) JO ERNTITIS 150 LT0T -970T 183X 18351
I J10J $1S0)) IIUBUIUILA] [RUODIPPY Surpuny pasodoag wany




123k [E6STEE IS JO ITLIIAR UE 10§06 LS0°0G :s39afoad aeok Sjoeiog

869°¢ILS 6707 — 8T0T 1810,
SONUAADY [LIOUID)

paroadxa 1509 [RUOT}IPPE ON - xe] Kuaadorg 000°0€ AouaBunuo))
SONUIAY [BIoUIN)

Pardadxa §1500 [RUOHIPPE ON - xe] Auadoig 000°ST Jjuswageury 102fo1g

(syr1vav

SINUIAY [BIOULD) 869°811 sdwung ‘ojquury [ zirenQ))

pajoadxa $1800 [RUONIPPE ON - xe] Auredorg JUSUISRURA] 19SS

SONUDAY [BIAUID) (100lo1d FINDV)

pajoadxa §1502 JRUOTIIPPE ON - xe] Apadorg 000°0SS s109f01 Juawaaordury [eyrden

SIBI X AT IX9N oY) JO ERNNOTS 150D 620T -820T 189X [€ISI]

o] 10J $1S0D) NUBUNUILIA] [EUONIPPY Surpun g pasodo.rg wd)y







JuswjoIu3 21351Q [00YdS

008’y

00€'S

008's

00E‘9

0089

00€L

P1Is1a j0oyds Auno) sejSnog ayy Aq papinoad ezep Juaw|josua 1ooyas

20 s, 1ydesSowaq ajels epeasN YL WOl £20Z 03 STOZ SINUNO) 5,ePEeAaN 10§ suondalold uonendod, wouy paureiqo eyep uonejndog

JUIW|[OIUT [OOYIS e U0 e|NHOJ e

&
o S
& N @

Spuai] jJuswijjoiu3 jooyds @ uone|ndod Ayuno) sej8noqg .

008'zy

008ty

0089t

0088t

008'0§

008'zs

008FS

uonejndod Ayuno)y




"2240 s 1aydesdowaq alels epenaN 3y) w0y £Z0Z 03 STOZ SINUNOD S, epenan 1o} suondalold uonejndod, woyy paulelqo ezep uonejndogd

uonie|ndod J0IUSS s UoIE|NdO ] e
L " & 4 4 4 4 L L L 4 L 4 A L 4 4 L L L L L 4
& < S $ S S & g S 3 3 g S & & N & & &
A L & & & %) EX & < & & So & & & & & N § & S &
- —_ — — - - | oo8'zy
|
000z
008t
000"y
0009
008y
000’8
000'0T 0088y
000ZT
0o0g'0s
000'T
000°9T
008'zS
000'8T ,
0000z - — e — - I -~ oog'vs

uone|ndod Jo1uas 73 uonejndod Ayuno) sejSnoq

uone|ndod Ayunosy




CVSC January 2024 Director’s Report

User Attendance: See hoard binder documents.
* Dec 2022 Attendance was 6803. Dec 2023 Attendance was 7389 (See attached docs)

Programming, Staffing and Training:
* Holiday Celebrations were successful in thanking and honoring our CVSC Team.
® Leadership Team (Director and Supervisors) meet monthly to plan and discuss CVSC programming & staffing.
® Monthly In-Service Training/Meeting was conducted by all supervisors.
® Session, Drop-In and Private swim and dive lessons are combined numbers and classes have been successful (see
attached #'s)
* Water Aerobics Class attendance is staying steady at 35+ participants in the morning classes. Evening classes are
smaller but well likes and attended.

Marketing and Public Relations:

* Shannon attended Directors Forum for the NRPS in Las Vegas and Reno, DCSD’s “Partners Across Communities”
Open House, Executive and General NRPS Board Meetings and the Oversite Committee Meeting as a member for
Pool Pact.

e Social media exposure, information sharing and flyers: Facebook & Instagram updates (Sarah & Catherine).

* Website updates (Justin, Paul, Sharon), Google Business updates (Shannon), Alignable updates (Shannon)

® Publications: Carson Valley Business Directory, Getaway Reno/Tahoe Area, Best of CV, Almanac, Record Courier.

® CGIl Marketing Group continues to do a good job managing our online reputation with Google, Yelp (Shannon)

® Phone Message updates (Sherrie)

® Water Aerobics Coordinator (Deanna) is emailing staff and patrons on our internal water aerobics list to keep up-to-
date on schedule or procedure changes.

Employee Recognition:
«Employee of the Month: TBD

Maintenance Updates:
® Therapy Pool restroom door and locking mechanism has been replaced. The other door to follow now that we know
it works well and the patrons are happy with it — easier to lock and lighter in weight.
® Research being done on a new upgraded projector for Flick N Floats and special events.
® Radio Repeater System Final Inspection was completed and passed.
* Roof coating project walk thru identified more work to be done. Retention is still being held.

® Dive stand pad has been put in place but has some bubbling. The company will be out to complete warranty work
onsite the end of January 2024.

® Daily, weekly, monthly and annual maintenance projects and asset management are being completed... excel
document updated by Maintenance Supervisor and Director regularly
® Updating and improving the data information in Reserve Analyst (Asset Management Program).

Monthly Financial: See board binder documents.

Correspondence: See board binder documents (if applicable).




East Fork Swim Pool District
Attendance Report Fiscal Year: 2022-2023

July Aug | Sept [ Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun Total
Attendance 22265| 15621 9610 8532 6962 6803 69793
Attendance:
Lessons 1498 650 246 461 392 197 3444
Swim Team 1869| 1440 1760 1680 1300 1320 9369
Mem/Pass Visits 3893| 3968| 3118| 3052 2477| 2523 19031
DHS Aquatics 0 125 588| 434 620 272 2039
DHS Swim/Dive 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Drop-In Visits| 15005/ 9438| 3898| 2905 2173| 2491 35910
User Fees| 72,511|58,663(28,952|24,577 21,532122,332 $228,567
East Fork Swim Pool District
Attendance Report Fiscal Year: 2023-2024
July Aug | Sept | Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar | Apr | May | Jun Total
Attendance 22813( 14787 8898 8057| 7373| 7389 0 0 0 69317
Attendance:
Lessons 1703 786 548 415 481 200 4133
Swim Team 1000| 1100 1050/ 1100 1000| 1000 6250
Mem/Pass Visits 3964| 3914 3210| 3216| 3096| 3051 20451
DHS Aquatics 0 172 447 318 404 344 1685
DHS Swim/Dive 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Drop-In Visits| 16146 8815| 3643| 3008| 2392 2794 : 36798
User Fees| 100,273|70,785|35,787|31,700{28,920| 22,819 $290,284




East Fork Swim Pool District
Attendance Report Fiscal Year: 2022-2023

July Aug | Sept | Oct | Nov | Dec Jan Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun Total
Attendance 22265| 15621 9610 8532 6962 6803 7138 7915| 9485| 11261 9632 16649| 131873
Attendance:
Lessons 1498| 650| 246| 461 392| 197| 356| 429| 543| 577| 576 1045 6970
Swim Team 1869 1440| 1760| 1680 1300/ 1320| 1320| 1200/ 1320| 1200 1020 1000 16429
Mem/Pass Visits|  3893| 3968| 3118| 3052| 2477] 2523 2370| 2331( 2907| 3078 2910| 3647 36274
DHS Aquatics 0 125 588 434 620( 272 558| 464 682 540| 460 270 5013
DHS Swim/Dive 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 400 396 352 220 0 1368
Drop-In Visits| 15005 9438| 3898| 2905| 2173 2491| 2534| 3091| 3637| 5514| 4446| 10687 65819
User Fees| 72,511|58,663|28,952 24,577121,532(22,332|31,606|30,146 31,028|35,516|45,732|76,502| $479,097
East Fork Swim Pool District
Attendance Report Fiscal Year: 2023-2024
July Aug | Sept | Oct Nov | Dec Jan Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun Total
Attendance 22813 14787| 8898| 8057 7373| 7389 0 0 0 0 0 0 69317
Attendance:
Lessons 1703| 786/ 548 415| 481 200 4133
Swim Team 1000| 1100/ 1050/ 1100/ 1000| 1000 6250
Mem/Pass Visits 3964| 3914| 3210( 3216/ 3096( 3051 20451
DHS Aquatics 0 172 447 318 404 344 1685
DHS Swim/Dive 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Drop-In Visits| 16146| 8815| 3643| 3008 2392 2794 36798
User Fees| 100,273|70,785|35,787(31,700/ 28,920 22,819 $290,284




East Fork Swim Pool District
Lifeguard Activity Report, Fiscal Year: '22-'23

July | Aug | Sept| Oct | Nov | Dec| Jan | Feb |Mar April| May|June | Total
Swim Rescues 4 0 1 2 1 2 0 0 3 4 1 9 27
Minor First Aid 29| 16 8 5 0 1 1| -=5] =3 9 8| 24| 109
Major First Aid of o 0l=0 0 of o i 0 0 o 1
Resuscitations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0] o0 0 0 0 0
Near Drownings 0 o 0 0 00 0o o o o 0 0o o 0
Drownings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 of O 0 0 0 0
Major First Aid Description:
Backboard 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
911 Calls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Ambulance Transport 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 il o 0 0 0 1
Oxygen uses 1 2 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 7
East Fork Swim Pool District
Lifeguard Activity Report, Fiscal Year: '23-'24

July | Aug | Sept| Oct | Nov | Dec| Jan | Feb [Mar April| May [June | Total
Swim Rescues 3 1 2 2 0 0 8
Minor First Aid 44 18 5 7 0 8 82
Major First Aid of o of o of 0 0|
Resuscitations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Near Drownings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Drownings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Major First Aid Description:
Backboard 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
911 Calls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ambulance Transport 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Oxygen uses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0




User Attendance Breakdown

Summary Dec 2023 July 1, 2023 thru Dec 31, 2023
Drop-Ins | Passes Total % Drop-Ins | Passes Total %

Senior 261 2,365 2,626 45% 2,934 15,993 18,927 33%
Adult 891 321 1,212 21% 11,147 1,972 13,119 23%
Youth 1,442 17 1,459 25% 20,595 350 20,945 37%
Complimentary 27 - 27 0% 544 - 544 1%
Family 37 62 99 2% 633 365 998 2%
Disabled 31 173 204 3% 228 1,083 1,311 2%
Therapy 80 - 80 1% 488 =2 488 1%
Other 25 113 138 2% 229 688 917 2%

2,794 3,051 5,845 100% 36,798 20,451 57,249 100%




> ey
T e N o -

Loz 3 hond Nou - @Yihg -

-ﬂ"[(f\lf} Ié \./OIA ‘:‘ 1
Kt Koonts, el

AL VO Wnve

— (o AN L
Q\\O\\{\ A C@m “\gf <,
53
: : (ﬁ’ﬂf ¢
VAl . S
Fllon G daeew
Lonmer " Tighson




Carson Valley Little League EAR
EIN: 88-0162960

PO Box 1064

Gardnerville, NV 89410

Email: carsonvalleyll@gmail.com

To Our Generous Donors:

As 2023 draws to an end, we wanted to say thank you so much for your donation toward our
annual raffle this season. As you may know, our annual raffle is the biggest driver of donations
each year, so we appreciate your support.

Fundraising and Donations

While a nominal fee for participation is charged to families of players, the league relies on
donations to operate the program and keep up with facility needs including field maintenance,

equipment, and uniforms. These funds are raised from local community donations and
fundraising efforts.

Thank you for supporting our league!
The CVLL Fundraising Committee
Christina Knittel, Tiffany Fredrickson, and Melissa Kelly

RERE R R

g

CNIRSONEV/ATI
SWINE CENKT

Lityee

Esaas




